

AN1491: SiWx917 RF Transmit & Receive Measurements

This App Note describes the procedure for Transmit Power & Receive Sensitivity measurements with SiWx917. CLI demo application is used to configure suitable RF parameters enabling Tx & Rx modes. The steps for running CLI demo via UART interface are mentioned in detail.

The CLI Demo application is a command-line interface (CLI) application designed to showcase various functionalities and capabilities of SiWx917 in different scenarios and configuration modes. CLI allows users to perform tasks quickly and efficiently by entering commands directly.

KEY POINTS

- WLAN RF Test Setup requirements
- Frame the CLI commands using any serial terminal e.g., Serial Debug Assistant and pass the commands via UART interface.
- Transmit test : Commands and Output waveforms showing the spectrum.
- Receive test : Commands and Stats showing various receive parameters.
- Spectrum Analyzer settings

Table of Contents

| 1. | Introduction | ; |
|----|--|--------|
| | 1.1 Hardware | ; |
| | 1.2 Software | 3 |
| | 1.3 Setup Diagram | 3 |
| | 1.4 Setting up the Development Environment | ł |
| 2. | CLI Commands | ; |
| 3. | WLAN RF Performance Test. |) |
| | 3.1 Transmit Test | 5 |
| | 3.1.1 Setup Serial Debug Assistant | ; 7 |
| | 3.1.3 Transmit Modes |) |
| | 3.1.4 Spectral Measurements |) |
| | 3.1.5 Error Vector Magnitude Measurement |) |
| | 3.2 Receive test | 5 |
| | 3.2.1 CLI Commands | ; |

1. Introduction

SiWx917 has to be initialized and configured before it can be used for Transmit or Receive. There are various PER commands shown here that are used for initialization, configuration and transmit/receive. In this document, SiWG917 SoC Kit (BRD4338A radio board + 4002A base board) is used to run CLI demo and execute relevant PER commands in it. Here are the details for making this setup. However user can have similar customized setup to run the CLI demo and execute PER commands in it.

1.1 Hardware

- SiWG917 SoC Kit (BRD4338A radio board + WPK (BRD4002A base board))
- · USB to Type C cable for powering the kit and flashing the application
- · A PC with USB port
- · Spectrum/Signal Analyzer for WLAN RF Tx measurement
- · Signal Generator for WLAN RF Rx measurement
- Coaxial cable (or antenna) for connecting the RF port of the Si917 radio board to the Spectrum/Signal Analyzer or Signal Generator. BRD4338A board is equipped with an SWD type connector (connector type: MuRata - MM8430-2610)

1.2 Software

Simplicity Studio IDE for creating the CLI project and flashing it onto the SiWG917 radio board with a GSDK suite with the WiSeConnect SDK included.

(Optional) A Serial terminal software such as Serial Debug Assistant af for transmitting and receiving commands. User can download it from the Microsoft store. Serial Debug Assistant is recommended because of the ease of saving the commands. Simplicity Studio can be used as well for serial connection

Note:

Note: The user can use the Simplicity studio's console window for sending and receiving the CLI commands.

Refer Perform Console Output and Input for BRD4338A .

1.3 Setup Diagram

The figure below shows the setup and the connections for the WLAN RF testing.



Figure 1.1. Setup Diagram – WLAN RF testing

1.4 Setting up the Development Environment

Thefollowing section describes about setting up SiWG917 SoC kit to use the CLI utility.

- 1. Launch the Simplicity Studio IDE.]
- 2. Select the CLI Demo under Examples Project & Demos from the Launcher page.
- 3. Build and flash the application.

Refer the Getting started guide of SoC for setting up the project and flashing it onto the device.

| File Edit Navigate Search Project Run Window Help ↑ Welcome © Recent III Tools & Install ◆ Preferences III Debug Adapters | SiWG917 Single Bar 2 overview EXAMPLE PROJECTS | 1 Simplicity IDE Debug |
|---|--|--|
| | Filter on keywords | GATT server from connected remote device using GATT client. |
| My Products Enter product name | Demos Example Projects Solution Examples What are Demo and Example Projects? A Wireless Technology Clear | Cli Demo (SoC) The CLI Demo application is a command-line interface (CLI) application designed to showcase various functionalities and capabilities of SiWx91x in different scenarios and configuration modes. It serves as a quick reference guide and a hands-on demonstration of SiWx91x core features for developers and users. View Project Documentation |
| Log In 🔻 | Bluetooth (11) Matter (0) Wi-Fi (24) Oevice Type Clean | Wi-Fi - AWS IoT MQTT Client (SoC) Create an AWS IoT thing that interacts with AWS IoT Core using MQTT publish/subscribe View Project Documentation |

Figure 1.2. Setting up the Development Environment

2. CLI Commands

This section provides the steps to run the CLI utility on SiWG917 SoC.

Launch a **serial** terminal, and follow the below steps.

- Select the Serial port, For E.g.: FT232R USB UART or COM Port can be detected.
- Select the Baud rate as 115200.
- 1. Use the help command, which will display all the commands of the CLI demo.

| 🛱 Serial Debug Assist | ant | | - | | 0 | × |
|---|--------------|---------|--|-----|-------|------|
| 🗚 🗹 ? | \odot | | | | | ¢ |
| Serial Port : | COM6 | ~ Re | ady | | | 1 |
| Baud Rate : 🔍 🐊 | 115200 | × . | | | | 1 |
| Data Bits : | 8 | ~ he | lp | | | |
| Parity : | None | ~ | | | | |
| Stop Bits : | 1 | ~ ge | t <string></string> | | | |
| RI DSR CTS | DTR R | TS he | Get | | | |
| Close Serial | Port | ine ine | Print help | | | |
| Receive settings : Save receiving to file HEX display | | l ne | st List variables t_deinit {ap bluetooth client ethernet thread zwave} Deinit the network interface | | | |
| Auto break frame | 20 ms | ? | String | Ida | Sa | ed |
| Script Add Times | tamp ~ | 1. | help | | Je | 1 |
| Save data | Clear data | | | | - | |
| Send Settings : | | | | | H | |
| Send file | Extension cm | | | | - | |
| HEX send | | | | | - | 4 |
| Script ADD8 | - 10 | - | | | | S |
| | 1.0 | sec | | | - | 6 |
| Display send string | - | • | List - No Þ | T | E | |
| | | Send | 1: 6 Receive : 11750 - 217 | Re | set o | ount |

Figure 2.1. Help Command

Note:

- All the CLI commands should end/terminate with <CR><LF>.
- The help command will display all the commands of various functionalities, especially WLAN RF performance test.

3. WLAN RF Performance Test

This section provides the transmit test commands for CLI and the steps to follow to send those commands.

3.1 Transmit Test

The following sections explain the steps to setup a serial termina, the CLI commands for transmit test and the expected output waveforms.

3.1.1 Setup Serial Debug Assistant

- 1. Click the reset button on the base board and load the binary or application.
- 2. Once the application is flashed, Ready is displayed on the terminal.
- 3. Send the transmit test commands from the command window (bottom right portion).

| 🖗 Serial Debug Assistant - 🔿 | | | | | |
|------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|------|----------|--|
| 🔺 🗠 ? | \odot | | | ŝ | |
| Serial Port : | соме ~ | Ready | | | |
| Baud Rate : 🔍 🔔 | 115200 ~ | | | | |
| Data Bits : | 8 × | ` | | | |
| Parity : | None ~ | | | | |
| Stop Bits : | 1 × | | | | |
| RI DSR CTS | DTR RTS | | | | |
| Close Serial | Port | | | | |
| Receive settings : | | | | | |
| Save receiving to file | | | | | |
| HEX display | | | | | |
| Auto break frame | 20 ms ? | HEX String | \r\n | Send | |
| Script Add Timest | amp 🗸 💪 | heln | | 1 | |
| Save data | Clear data | | | - | |
| Send Settings : | | | U, | 2 | |
| Send file | Extension cmd | | | 3 | |
| HEX send | | | | 4 | |
| Script ADD8 | ~ L | | | 5 | |
| Timing send | 1.0 Sec | 0 | | 6 | |
| Display send string | ~ | List - No 🕨 | | | |
| | | Send : 0 Receive : 13 - 13 | Res | et count | |

3.1.2 CLI Commands

The below commands are available for the Transmit Test. Their description and examples are shown below.

| 1 | Command | Description | Example |
|---|---|---|---|
| 1 | wifi_init -i <mode></mode> | For initializing the WiFi interface and for selecting the mode. | wifi_init -i transmit_test |
| 2 | wifi_set_antenna -i client -a <antenna type=""></antenna> | Used for selecting the antenna | wifi_set_antenna -i client -a 0 By default antenna type should be set to 0 |
| 3 | wifi_transmit_test_start <power> <data rate=""> <length> <mode> <channel></channel></mode></length></data></power> | To start the transmit test | wifi_transmit_test_start 127 0 100 1 1 |
| 4 | wifi_transmit_test_stop | To stop the transmit test | wifi_transmit_test_stop |

The image below shows the above Transmit Test CLI commands given in the Serial Debug Assistant.

| FT232R USB UART,115200,None,8,One - Serial Debug A | ssistant | ٥ | × | | | |
|---|--|------|----------|--|--|--|
| 🗚 🖸 ? 😅 | | | ŝ | | | |
| Serial Port : 😋 🛛 FT232R USB UART 🖂 | Ready | | | | | |
| Baud Rate : 🥼 115200 🗸 | > wifi_init -i transmit_test | | | | | |
| Parity : None V | 0x00000: (738ms) Success | | | | | |
| Stop Bits: One \checkmark > wifi_set_antenna -i client -a 0 | | | | | | |
| Close serial port | Close serial port 0x00000: (7ms) Success | | | | | |
| Receiving settings. | Receiving settings. > wifi_transmit_test_start 127 0 100 1 1 | | | | | |
| HEX display 0x00000: (7ms) Success | | | | | | |
| Pause receiving display | > wifi_transmit_test_stop | | | | | |
| Auto break frame ? 20 | AVAQAA. (Swr) Succore | | | | | |
| Receive scripts 🐊 Add Timesta 🗸 | axaaaaa (ams) Success | | | | | |
| Save data Empty data | HEX String | \r\n | Send | | | |
| Send settings. | wifi_init -i transmit_test | | 1 | | | |
| Send a file Extension cmd | wifi_set_antenna -i client -a 0 | | 2 | | | |
| HEX Send | ↓ wifi transmit test start 127 0 100 1 1 | | 3 | | | |
| Sending scripts X ADD8 V | □ uifi transmit test ston | | - | | | |
| | | | 4 | | | |
| | | | 5 | | | |
| Line break \r\n (CRLF) \ | | | 6 | | | |
| Show Send string | | | 7 | | | |
| | i i | | | | | |
| | Send : 126 Receive : 259 | Rese | et count | | | |

The description of the specific wifi_transmit_test_start command is shown below.

wifi_transmit_test_start <power> <data rate> <length> <mode> <channel>

| Parameter | Description | Example |
|-----------------|---|-----------------------|
| | Set transmit power. Valid values are from 2dBm to 21dBm and the valid input range is from 0-127. | <power> = 127</power> |
| <power></power> | Note: This value is meant for configuring the power level for a particular frequency band. Value = 127 can be used to set the maximum power level passing IEEE spectral mask and EVM specs. | |

AN1491: SiWx917 RF Transmit & Receive Measurements WLAN RF Performance Test

| Parameter | | | Description | Example | |
|-----------------------|--|--------------------------------|--|---------------------------|------------------------|
| | Set transmit d | ata rate. | | <data rate=""> = 0</data> | |
| | <d< td=""><td>ata rate></td><td>Selected Data Rate (Mbps)</td><td></td><td></td></d<> | ata rate> | Selected Data Rate (Mbps) | | |
| | | 0 | 1 | | |
| | | 2 | 2 | | |
| | | 4 | 5.5 | | |
| | | 6 | 11 | | |
| | | 139 | 6 | | |
| | | 143 | 9 | | |
| | | 138 | 12 | | |
| | | 142 | 18 | | |
| <data rate=""></data> | | 137 | 24 | | |
| | | 141 | 36 | | |
| | | 136 | 48 | | |
| | | 140 | 54 | | |
| | | 256 | MCS0 | | |
| | | 257 | MCS1 | | |
| | | 258 | MCS2 | | |
| | | 259 | MCS3 | | |
| | | 260 | MCS4 | | |
| | | 261 | MCS5 | | |
| | | 262 | MCS6 | | |
| | | 263 | MCS7 | | |
| | Configure leng | gth of the trans | mit packet. | | <length>=1500</length> |
| clengths | Valid values a | re as below: | | | |
| < rengenz | [24 1500] b | ytes in burst m | ode | | |
| | [24 260] by | tes in continuo | us mode | | |
| | Transmit mode | | <mode>=0</mode> | | |
| | Mode | | Transmit Mode | | |
| | 0 | Burst Mode | · | | |
| | 1 | Continuous | Mode | | |
| <mode></mode> | 2 | CW Mode (| unmodulated) in DC mode | | |
| | 3 | CW Mode (center frequ | unmodulated) with a single tone at: Jency - 2.5 MHz | | |
| | 4 | CW Mode (center frequ | unmodulated) with a single tone at: Jency + 5 MHz | | |
| | For descrip 3.1.3 Trans | otion on each o smit Modes. | f these modes refer to Section | _ | |

| Parameter | | Description | Example |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|--|-----------------------|
| | Set the Channel number. | | <channel>=4</channel> |
| | Channel Number (2.4 GHz) | Center frequency in MHz for 20MHz channel width | |
| | 1 | 2412 | |
| | 2 | 2417 | |
| | 3 | 2422 | |
| | 4 | 2427 | |
| | 5 | 2432 | |
| <channel></channel> | 6 | 2437 | |
| | 7 | 2442 | |
| | 8 | 2447 | |
| | 9 | 2452 | |
| | 10 | 2457 | |
| | 11 | 2462 | |
| | 12 | 2467 | |
| | 13 | 2472 | |
| | 14 | 2484 | |

3.1.3 Transmit Modes

Here are the details of transmit modes available for SiWG917. Understanding of these will help in framing the relevant wifi_transmit_test_start command.

3.1.3.1 Burst Mode

The DUT transmits a burst of packets with the given power, rate, length in the channel configured.

• The burst size (packet length) will be determined by the <length> parameter in the wifi_transmit_test_start command. If the <length> parameter is zero, then DUT keeps transmitting until wifi_transmit_test_stop command is given.

3.1.3.2 Continuous Mode

The DUT transmits a modulated waveform continuously.

3.1.3.3 Continuous Wave Mode (Non-Modulation) in DC Mode

The DUT transmits a spectrum at the center frequency of the channel only. Continuous wave (CW) signal has no modulation and it is of a sine wave. In the frequency domain, it is viewed as a single line at the specified center frequency.

3.1.3.4 Continuous Wave Mode (Non-Modulation) in Single Tone Mode (Center frequency -2.5 MHz)

The DUT transmits a spectrum that is generated at -2.5 MHz from the center frequency of the selected channel. Some amount of carrier leakage will be seen at Center Frequency.

• Example, for 2412 MHz center frequency, the output will be seen at 2409.5 MHz.

3.1.3.5 Continuous Wave Mode (Non-Modulation) in Single Tone Mode (Center frequency +5 MHz)

The DUT transmits a spectrum that is generated at 5MHz from the center frequency of the selected channel. Some amount of carrier leakage will be seen at Center Frequency.

• Example, for 2412 MHz center frequency, the output will be seen at 2417 MHz.

Note:

- Before starting Continuous Wave mode (CW mode), it is required to first start transmitting at Continuous mode with power and channel values that is intended to be used in CW mode. Here are the steps to be followed.
 - 1. Start Continuous mode with intended power value and channel value. Use the valid values for rate and length.
 - 2. Stop Continuous mode.
 - 3. Start CW mode with the same above power value and channel value.
- To switch CW mode, stop PER mode by giving wifi_transmit_test_stop command and then use the other relevant CW mode.
- It is recommended to measure the TX power with Burst mode or Continuous mode only.
- Continuous wave mode is not recommended for TX power measurement. Continuous wave mode can be used for measuring the frequency error.

3.1.4 Spectral Measurements

3.1.4.1 Measurement Procedure

After commissioning any transmission on the SoC, the radio will generate various signals. The following section shows some examples and gives a general description, about how these spectral measurements can be carried out. Setting up spectral mask measurements on a generic spectrum analyzer

This document doesn't intend to give a full description how a spectrum analyzer to be used as all models have different behavior and user interface, although we can specify some general settings. Based on the Spectrum Analyzer models, these settings may vary. In the following section the general spectrum, channel power and spectrum mask measurement is demonstrated.

General spectrum measurement settings:

- 1. Select the **Spectrum analyzer** mode from the Spectrum settings.
- 2. Set the **Frequency** of the Spectrum analyzer in which the DUT is transmitting.
- Example: If the DUT is transmitting in channel 1, then set the Frequency to 2412 MHz and set the Center Frequency to the same Frequency. If Spectrum Analyzers have the marker option, then set the marker on the same frequency.
- 3. Select Span and type in the frequency value of 50 MHz or 100MHz for WLAN.
- 4. Set the RBW (Resolution Bandwidth) to 100 KHz and VBW (Video Bandwidth) to 30 KHz or leave both of them on Auto settings.
- 5. Set the Ref level slightly higher than the expected maximum output power (23 dB for instance).
- 6. Select Sweep button and set the value to 1 sec to update the sweep of the analyzer to every one second or leave on auto setting.
- 7. Set the Trace settings to Max hold or Average to catch even short transient signals.

If Spectral mask measurement is required and available:

- 1. Go to measurements and select Spectrum Emission Mask
- 2. In the measurement configuration set the mask settings manually or select an already defined standard measurement like a WLAN mode 802.11.ax. The spectral mask measurement settings may be described differently for various standard or regulatory testing. Please refer to the corresponding standards.

If Channel power measurement is required and available:

- 1. Go to measurements menu and select Channel Power
- 2. In the measurement configuration set the channel (channel width) settings manually or select an already defined standard measurement like a WLAN mode 802.11.b. The channel power measurement settings may be described differently for various standard or regulatory testing. Please refer to the corresponding standards.

3.1.4.2 Measurement Results

802.11b mode (1Mbps data rate) channel power :



03:59:31 PM 05/02/2024

802.11g mode (6Mbps data rate) spectrum mask measurement :

| MultiView 📰 | Spectrum | 1 | | | | | | | • |
|--------------------|-------------|-------------|---|---------|----------------|------------|---------------------------------------|-------------------------|---------------|
| Ref Level 0.00 dE | Зm | Mode Auto S | weep | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | Count 18/100 |
| 1 Spectrum Emiss | sion Mask | | | | | | | | o1Rm Avg |
| Limit Check | | | PAS | s | | | | | |
| P<200 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| -20 dBm | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| -30 dBm | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | hAnkhaaha | MMMMMMM | ለባለባለባለስስለስለስለ | 080000000 | | | |
| -40 dBm | | | 100000000 | | | WARAAAAA | | | |
| | | | | ١ | | | | | |
| -50 dBm | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | - y | | | | | | |
| -60 dBm | | | A CONTRACTOR OF | | | WWW | 000 | | |
| 70 40.00 | | | MMM | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Abas. | |
| -70 UBM | NAMAN NAMAN | WWWWWWWWW | | | | | | MANNA MANA | |
| SEM_LIMIT_002_RELA | pwwww. | | | | | | | · www. | A |
| WWWWWWWWWWWWW | | | | | | | | | mmmmm |
| -90 dBm- | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 1001 | | | | | | |
| CF 2.412 GHZ | | | 1001 pts | | | 6.0 MHZ/ | | | Span 60.0 MHz |
| 2 Result Summar | <u>y</u> | Conter | 2 41 CU- | | | 24.06 dDm | | DDW 100 | |
| SUD BIOCK A | | Center | 2.41 GHZ | F | eak Power | -34.96 abm | 80 | КВ¥¥ 100 2 11n 20МНz | 2.4GHz hand |
| Range Low | Ra | ange Up | RBW | Frea | uencv | Power Ab | s Pow | ver Rel | Dunu |
| -30.000 MHz | -20 | .000 MHz | 100.000 kHz | 2.382 | 03 GHz | -82.09 dB | m -47. | 13 dB | -2.13 dB |
| -20.000 MHz | -11 | .000 MHz | 100.000 kHz | 2.395 | 75 GHz | -69.31 dB | m -34. | 36 dB | -9.69 dB |
| -11.000 MHz | -9 | .000 MHz | 100.000 kHz | 2.401 | | -65.38 dB | m -30. | 42 ab - | -10.42 dB |
| 9.000 MHz | | | | 2.422 | 09 GH7 | -62.55 dB | m -27. | 33 dB | -6.60 dB |
| 20.000 MHz | | .000 MHz | 100.000 kHz | 2.441 | 97 GHz | -84.82 dB | m -49. | 87 dB | -4.87 dB |
| | | | | | | | | | 2024-04-25 |
| ~ | | | | | | | measuring | | 15:48:08 |

03:48:09 PM 04/25/2024

802.11n mode (MCS0 data rate) spectrum mask measurement:

| | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|----------------|----------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------|------------------------|------------------------------|
| MultiView 🖿 | Spectrum | | | | | • |
| Ref Level 0.00 d | Bm Mode Auto S | weep | | | | |
| 1 Spectrum Emis | sion Mask | | | | | Count 12/100 |
| Limit Check | | PASS | | | | U I NI AVG |
| P<200 | | | | | | |
| 10 0.011 | | | | | | |
| -20 dBm | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| -30 dBm | | | | | | |
| -40 dBm | | MAMAAAA | www.www.www.www.www.www.www.www. | Managanada | | |
| 40 GBII | | | V | | | |
| -50 dBm | | | | | | |
| | | | | Ч <u>Ч</u> | | |
| -60 dBm | | | | | | |
| 70 d0m | | N S | | MARA. | | |
| -70 ubiii | | m | | 1 Marthan | MMMMMMMMM | |
| SEM_LIMIT_002_PEL/ | wwwwwwwwwww | | | | ····· | mm |
| munnin | | | | | | munn |
| -90 dBm | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| CF 2.412 GHz | | 1001 pts | | 6.0 MHz/ | | Span 60.0 MHz |
| 2 Result Summar | ry | | | | | |
| Sub Block A | Center | 2.41 GHz | Peak Power | -36.13 dBm | RBW 10 802 11n 20MH | 00.000 kHz Iz 2.4GHz band |
| Range Low | Range Up | RBW | Frequency | Power Abs | Power Rel | ΔLimit |
| -30.000 MHz | -20.000 MHz | 100.000 kHz | 2.383 23 GHz | -81.70 dBm | -45.57 dB | -2.63 dB |
| -20.000 MHz -11.000 MHz | -11.000 MHz | 100.000 kHz 100.000 kHz | 2.402 00 GHz | -56.00 dBm | -19.87 dB | -9.87 dB |
| 9.000 MHz | 11.000 MHz | 100.000 kHz | 2.422 00 GHz | -56.51 dBm | -20.38 dB | -10.38 dB |
| 11.000 MHz | 20.000 MHz | 100.000 kHz | 2.431 37 GHz | -73.02 dBm | -36.89 dB | -9.42 dB |
| 20.000 MHz | 30.000 MHZ | 100.000 KHZ | 2.441.97 002 | -00.00 UBIII | -50.52 ub | -3.32 UD |
| ~ | | | | | suring | 2024-04-25 |

03:49:49 PM 04/25/2024

CW Mode (unmodulated) with a single tone at center frequency - 2.5 MHz :



03:25:42 PM 04/25/2024

CW Mode (unmodulated) with a single tone at center frequency + 5 MHz :



03:26:18 PM 04/25/2024

3.1.5 Error Vector Magnitude Measurement

The Transmit Error Vector Magnitude (EVM) test verifies that the device's EVM is within specified limits. The EVM is measured with a spectrum analyzer and measures how the modulated symbols deviate from the ideal constellation points. It's usually expressed in percentage [%] or in decibel [dB], and the smaller the better.

3.1.5.1 Setting up an EVM Measurement on a Spectrum Analyzer

- 1. Set the spectrum analyzer to VSA or WLAN mode. The key is to measure a time domain signal and demodulate it instead of doing spectrum analysis measurement. This feature is not guaranteed to most generic spectrum analyzer and may be requested as a plus feature.
- 2. Select a measurement to EVM or modulation accuracy.
- 3. Set the Ref level slightly higher than the expected maximum output power (23 dB for instance).
- 4. Set the Frequency of the Spectrum analyzer in which the DUT is transmitting. Example: If the DUT is transmitting in channel 1, then set the Frequency to 2412 MHz and set the Center Frequency to the same Frequency. If Spectrum Analyzers have the marker option, then set the marker on the same frequency.
- 5. Set the signal description to a corresponding WLAN standard (802.11 n for instance)

The measurement should be visible on the screen. If the transmitted packets on the DUT and the spectrum analyzer is set up correctly, then the packet synchronization (PPDU search) should be correct, and the measurement results should be visible.

3.1.5.2 Measurement Result Example



02:50:53 PM 04/25/2024

3.2 Receive test

The following sections explain the relevant CLI commands needed for receiving the packets. While packets are received, various stats are shown that represent the receiving performance of the DUT.

3.2.1 CLI Commands

The below commands are available for receiving the packets and getting relevant statistics.

| S.No | Command | Description | Example |
|------|--|--|--|
| 1 | wifi_init -i <mode></mode> | For initializing the WiFi interface and for selecting the mode. | wifi_init -i transmit_test |
| 2 | wifi_set_antenna -i client -a <antenna type=""></antenna> | Used for selecting the antenna | wifi_set_antenna -i client -a 0 By default, antenna type should be set to 0 |
| 3 | <pre>wifi_start_statistic_report -i client -c <channel> -n <stats_count></stats_count></channel></pre> | Used to receive the packet statistics 'once per second' in that selected channel. If 'n' is config- ured to 30, then 30 stats will be printed in total. The packet statistics are reset every time after calling this command. | wifi_start_statistic_report - i client -c 1 -n 30 |

The below image shows the CLI commands entered through a serial terminal.

| FT232R USB UART,115200,None,8,One - Serial Deb | g Assistant | | - | D | × |
|---|--|--|---------------|------|-----------------------------------|
| 🗚 🖂 ? 😅 | | | | | <u>نې</u> |
| Serial Port : C FT232R USB UART Baud Rate : A 115200 Date Bits : B Parity : None Stop Bits : One Close serial port Receiving settings. Receive and save to file HEX display Pause receiving display Auto break frame ? 20 | <pre>Ready > wifi_init -i transmit_test @x000000: (735ms) Success > wifi_set_antenna -i client -a 0 #x000000: (7ms) Success > wifi_start_statistic_report -i client -c 1 Receive statistics wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 51, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recie stats : crc_pass 50, crc_fail 23, cal_rssi : wifi_stats_receive_handler: WIFI STATS Recieve_handler: WIFI STATS Reciev</pre> | 91 91 ved packet# 1 91 ved packet# 2 | | | |
| Save data Empty data | HEX | 79 String | | \r\n | Send |
| Send settings: Send a file Extension.cmd HEX Send Sending scripts ADD8 Sending scripts ADD8 Timing send 1.0 sec DTR RTS Line break VVn (CRLF) Show Send string | <pre>wifi_init -i transmit_test wifi_set_antenna -i client -a 0 wifi_start_statistic_report -i client -c 1</pre> | | List - No 30- | | 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 |
| | Send : 105 | Receive : 3470 | | Rese | et.count |

3.2.2 Reception measurements

3.2.2.1 Packet Error Rate

Packet Error Rate (PER) and Bit Error Rate (BER) are error ratios that could measure various reception tests like:

- · Sensitivity
- · Selectivity
- Blocking
- Intermodulation
- · Maximum input power

These measurements are there to show what is the minimum required Rx power level, where the device under thest is capable to receive under various conditions.

Basics of the Packet Error Rate

To measure PER, the accurate packet symbols must be known. PER [%] is calculated by the following:

1

$$PER = \frac{P_{Error}}{P_{Sent}} * 100$$

where

- · Perror = the number of packets not received correctly
- · Psent = the number of packets sent

and the result is displayed as a percentage.

PER measurement requires an accurate device that is able to send the packets the device under test (DUT) expects to receive. An RF vector signal generator is a good fit for these measurements.

Typical PER measurement procedure is the following:

- 1. Record the packet that should be transmitted to the DUT (device under test / Wi-Fi SoC in this case) and load it to the RF signal generator. It's possible that the RF generator is already preloaded with such packets. It may be there as a packet of a specific WLAN standard.
- 2. Connect the RF signal generator and the DUT with the proper RF cable.
- 3. Initialize the DUT with the wifi_init -i transmit_test command.
- 4. Set the proper antenna if necessary with the wifi_set_antenna -i client -a <antenna type> command.
- 5. Send 100 to 1000 packets to the DUT. (Psent)
- 6. View the received number of packets by using wifi_start_statistic_report -i client -c 1 -n 1 command for example. The "CRC pass" value gives the successfully received number of packets. (Psent packets received = Perror)
- 7. Calculate PER.

3.2.2.2 The Sensitivity Measurement

Sensitivity of a device is the minimum level of received RF power that the device is capable of receiving. Sensitivity is often expressed in dBm. It is usually defined for a 10% packet error rate, which means that at the sensitivity level (in dBm) the receiver is capable to produce 10% PER. By adjusting the output power of the generator, the sensitivity of the radio can be determined.



From this graph it can be determined that the sensitivity of a device at 10% PER is -102 dBm. In practice the sensitivity of a device depends on the radio configuration, such as modulation, deviance, and frequency. To measure the sensitivity of a receiver, PER must be measured at various receiver power levels, in practice between 0 to -120 dBm values with 1 to 5 dB steps. The measurement results are more accurate if the RF signal generators power steps finer and more packets are sent at each power step. In the above example, the PF power step is 1 dB and 100 packets were sent at each frequency step.

Smart. Connected. Energy-Friendly.



www.silabs.com/products



Quality www.silabs.com/quality



Support & Community www.silabs.com/community

Disclaimer

Silicon Labs intends to provide customers with the latest, accurate, and in-depth documentation of all peripherals and modules available for system and software implementers using or intending to use the Silicon Labs products. Characterization data, available modules and peripherals, memory sizes and memory addresses refer to each specific device, and "Typical" parameters provided can and do vary in different applications. Application examples described herein are for illustrative purposes only. Silicon Labs reserves the right to make changes without further notice to the product information, specifications, and descriptions herein, and does not give warranties as to the accuracy or completeness of the included information. Without prior notification, Silicon Labs may update product firmware during the manufacturing process for security or reliability reasons. Such changes will not alter the specifications or the performance of the product. Silicon Labs shall have no liability for the consequences of use of the information supplied in this document. This document does not imply or expressly grant any license to design or fabricate any integrated circuits. The products are not designed or authorized to be used within any FDA Class III devices, applications for which FDA premarket approval is required or Life Support Systems without the specific written consent of Silicon Labs. A "Life Support System" is any product or system intended to support or sustain life and/or health, which, if it fails, can be reasonably expected to result in significant personal injury or death. Silicon Labs products are not designed or authorized for military applications. Silicon Labs product shall under no circumstances be used in weapons of mass destruction including (but not limited to) nuclear, biological or chemical weapons, or missiles capable of delivering such weapons. Silicon Labs disclaims all express and implied warranties and shall not be responsible or liable for any injuries or damages related to use of a Silicon Lab

Trademark Information

Silicon Laboratories Inc.[®], Silicon Laboratories[®], Silicon Labs[®], Silabs[®] and the Silicon Labs logo[®], Bluegiga[®], Bluegiga Logo[®], EFM[®], EFM32[®], EFR, Ember[®], Energy Micro, Energy Micro logo and combinations thereof, "the world's most energy friendly microcontrollers", Redpine Signals[®], WiSeConnect, n-Link, EZLink[®], EZRadio[®], EZRadio[®], Gecko[®], Gecko OS, Gecko OS Studio, Precision32[®], Simplicity Studio[®], Telegesis, the Telegesis Logo[®], USBXpress[®], Zentri, the Zentri logo and Zentri DMS, Z-Wave[®], and others are trademarks or registered trademarks of Silicon Labs. ARM, CORTEX, Cortex-M3 and THUMB are trademarks or registered trademarks of ARM Holdings. Keil is a registered trademark of ARM Limited. Wi-Fi is a registered trademark of the Wi-Fi Alliance. All other products or brand names mentioned herein are trademarks of their respective holders.



Silicon Laboratories Inc. 400 West Cesar Chavez Austin, TX 78701 USA

www.silabs.com